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Introduction

{ The Tryens family lived in New London, Pennsylvania in a white
house on State Road between Miss Emma Maxwell's funeral home and
Warren and Edna Roney’'s farm. Right across the street from Bill and
Ellen Mackey's house. Jeff and Alan started school at the *0ld School”
(formerly New London Academy) up the road. Grandmom and Grandpop Hill
lived in a trailer in the bdck yard. We all faithfully attended the
New London Methodist Church and ail the related groups and functions.

COur house had a pond in the back which we ice skated on, and a
field and a barn which Grandpop used for his horses. Harry always had
a garden in the summer which produced legendary vegetables. Inside
there was a basement which contained the furnace, shelves of home
canned goads, Dad’'s tools and workbench, ard the fusebox. The Toom
next to the kitchen with the well under it became Dad's Office when he
started his own business. The attic contained treasures like swords
and old photos in a wooden trunk, old books and magazines, and an
antique clock that gonged. :

Ve went on trips to Vashipgton D.C., Florida, Mystic Sesport, and
Cooperstown. Our regular vacation spot was Hacks Point, Haryland,

Harry and Marie instilled in their children the values of honesty,
charity, compassion, and love of baseball. Mom used to drill her Cub
Scout pack in fielding and bhitting 2 lot more than knot tying and .
basketry. : o ‘

I have enjoyed writing this history of our family. I hope the rest
of you enjoy it, '

Cover Story

My favorite story from our family history is about August Truyens,
the original immigrant to the U.S.A. I'm sure it has been praperly
embelllished over the years. ,

August was born in Antwerp, Belgium, the son of Henry and Mary
Hance Truyens. As a young man, he served as a cabin boy an a Danish
merchant ship. One of August's dutles was to care for the captain's
beloved cat. When the cat becme sick and then suddenly disappeared,
the captain suspected that August might be responsible. August, being
a resourceful fellow, decided to leave the cabln boy profession in a
hurry. He jumped ship in Marcus Hook, Pa. and settled ,in the area.
Somewhere along the way his last name was shortened to Tryens.
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Harry Augustus Tryens

Harry was born on April 12, 1918 in Media, Pa. He graduated from
Media High School in 1337. He worked at a gas station, a steel plant
and as a merchant maripe before he joined the Army. He had also met
his future wife Marie at a fair at his church. He gave her an
engagement ring at Christmas before he left to go overseas. He
eventually was stationed in the Phillipines as an airplane mechanic.
WVhen Marie was also assigned to duty in the Phillipines, they wera
reunited. They decided to get married there after the war was over.
Since Marie was an officer <(Lleutenant) and Harry was a Sergeant, they
had to get special authorization to wed. On October 8, 1945, they were
marriad. ‘ : ' : '

Harry attended Spring Garden Institute after the war where he

learned drafting. He has worked in drafting since then. His specialty

is preparing fabrication drawings for structural steel., The excellent
quality of his work has allowed him to run a successful business for
fiore than 20 years, '

Harry and Marie moved to Few London, Pa. in 1952 to an old farm
house. They lived there until 1987 when they moved to a new house in
New Londomn.

Harry has always been community minded and has served on church
committees, local boards and other activities. The most lmpressive
service. has been approximately 30 years with the New London area GCub
Scouts. Marie was also a leader. Jeff, Alan, and Bill were officilal
members and Judy was certainly an honorary member.

Marie Hill Tryens

Marie was born in Newcastle on Tyne, England on October 17, 1921.
She and her mother Edith immigrated to the United States when Marie
was about 1 year old. Her fatbher, Jim had come over earlier, They
moved around scutheastern Pennsylvania while he worked as a tenant
farmer. Marie graduated from Oxford High School in 1939, She lived
with and worked for a veterinarian and his wife in Lima, Pa. while
taking an additional Chemistry course at Media High School. It was
during that time that she and Harry met. She enrolled in nursing
school at Chestnut Hill in Philadelphia. After graduating, she joilned
the Army, was commisioned as a Lieutenant, and was stationed in the .
Phillipines where she and Harry were married. -

' After the war, they lived in Upland, Pa. Marie worked as a private’
duty nurse while Harry went to school. They bought their first house,
a rundown rowhause in Upland for $8000. They fixed it up, then sold it
and moved to a house Harry's parents owned in Mt. Hope, Pa. Several
years later, they moved to New London.

After all of her children were in school, Marie became the
"Community Nurse”. This was a visiting nurse position which entailed
giving care to elderly, disabled, and impoverished peaple in the area.
I will never forget goling out with her before Christmas giving out
baskets with food and toys for really needy people.

Marle completed a degree in education from West Chester University.
She worked as the nurse at Avon Grove Middle School and subsequently
Avon Grove High School. There is a whole generation of young adults in
the area who comsider "Mrs. Tryens” as a really terrific person.
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Jeffray Leigh Tryens

Jeff was born on October 23,1946 while Harry and Maris were living
in their first house in Upland. He graduated from Avon Grove High
School in 1964 aznd Drexel Institute of Technology in 1969, He was a
standout player on both school's soccer teams. He has two advanced
degrees. He received a Masters Degree in Civil Engineering from
K.I.T. in 1971 and a Masters Degree in Public Administration from the
Kennedy School at Harvard in 1995,

Jeff was formerly the Deputy Director at the Center for Folicy
Alternatives In Washington, D.C. He has been quoted on the front page
of U.S.A. Today and has appeared on a CNN news story.

. Alan James Tryens

Alan was born on January 17, 1950 during the time the Tryens' were
at their second house in Upland. He graduated from Avon Grove High
School in 1968 and attended Lincoln University., He married Peggy Viars
in 1978 and adopted her daughter Wendi. They had a2 son Joshua in 1980.
Alan and Peggy were divorced in 1885.

Alan lives in Downingtown, Pa. with Wendi and Josh. - He is
presently attending Brandywine School of Nursing. He is notorious far
winning radio trivia contests. His biggest win was & trip to Ireland
to attend a Uz concert. He took Marie as his guest so that she could
visit her father's homeland. (No, Marie did not go to the concert!?

William David Tryens

The Tryens' were living in Mt. Hope when Bill was born on September
1, 1951, He graduated from Avon Grove High School in 1468 and from the
University of New Mewxico in 1974. He 1s a reglstered Professionsal
Engineer and works fcr a consulting firm, Ee previously worked for
aimost 8 years as the Staff Electrical Engineer for the University ol
Wew Mexico. :

On October 20, 1979, Bill married Christine Szabo. They live in
Albuguerque, N. M. with their =on Daniel.

Judith Ann Tryens

Judy was born on February 8, 1954 while the family lived in New
London. She graduated from Avon Grove High School in 19272, the
University of Delaware in 1978, and received a Masters Degree in Urban
Affairs and Policy Analysis from the University of Southern Illinois
at BEdwardsville in 1984, Judy has lived in Africa three different
times, She served in the Peace Corps in the Gambia from 1980 to 198Z2.
She later had two different positions in Bissau, the capital of .
Guinea-Bis=zau.  She met her husband Jota and had their first daughter
Tisha during the first tour and flew back to the U.S. 1o have Savannah
at the end of her last stay. The four of them currently live in Silver
Spring, Md.
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Christine Lydia Szabo Tryené

Chris was born on December 7, 1@5¢ in Vilmington De. She graduated
irom Ursiline Academy, Brandywine Junior College, and Vilmington
College. &She worked as a teacher for mentally retarded adults and for

zdults with cerebral palsy. She met Bill in 1976 and they were
married in 1979, : :

Joao Jose DalSilva Fermnandes

Jota was born in Luwanda, Angola on December 19, 1956, He earned
gngineering degrees in Cuba and Angola, He was working in Guinea-
Bissau for the United Nations when he met Judy. They were married in
1989. - He is currently a Computer Engineer imn Virginia.

Wendi Danielle Tryemns

¥endi was born on September 17, 1970 in Pulaski, Va. Her parents
7ere Peggy Viars VWilson and Gordon Wilson., After Alan married Peggy
Lha adopted Wendi. She lives with Alan in Downingtown where she
graduated from Downingtown High School. She is now a senior at the
Fhiladelphia College of Textiles and Science and works full time. .

Joshua Alan Tryens

Josh was born on February 16, 1980 while Alan, Peggy and Wendi were
living in Downingtown. He recently moved back to Dovwningtown with Alan
and Wendi and attends Downingtown High School,

Daniel Paul Tryens

Daniel was born on June 9, 1981 in Manistee, Michigan to Michael
Middleton and Terry Mudar Middleton. His sister, Michelle, is four
years older. He was adapted by Bill and Chris Tryens on December 20,
1993. He i1s attending Highland High School in Albuquerque.

. -~

Valvitcha Marie Tryens—-Fernandez

Tisha was born in Dakar, Senegal on February 21,1989, She has just
started the first grade.

Savannah Lena Flora Tryens
Savannah wasgs bérn on November 6, 1994 at the Christiana (Del.)

Hospital. Judy, Jota and Tisha were staying with Harry and Marie
atter returning from Africa.
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Tryens - Hall

fAugust Tryens sattled in Mt. Hope, Pa. Sarah Hall was born in Mt,

'Haope at Hall Cor The Hall fa “dn_the area since

when Thomas Hall came from England, | Sarah and August were. farmers and
had 4 ¢ dren, Marion, Alice, Samuel and Harry, \

Harry married Helen Griswold and they bad 3 children Sarah <(Aunt
Sally), Elizabeth ¢Aunt Bet) and Harry Jr.. Harry Sr. worked as a bank
teller and cashier. He was born April 8, 1887,

Griswold - Lodge

Helen Mercer Griswold was born in Middletown TDwnship, Deiaware
County, Pa. on October 26, 1889. Her father George died when Helen wasg

- young. Her mother Sarah Lodge Griswold raised Helen and her brother

Harold. She worked as agﬁﬁ?&%J ¥hen Helen graduated from Chester High
8chool, she was the only gir %Q’ ber class. She had a store in Media
where she sgld Sewing materials and trim for a few years. She liveq
many years while we were Browing up on Aunt Sally and Uncle Charles’
farm in Lewisville, Pa.

Brierley

The Brierley family had a tradition at sea. William Brierley was
the Captain of a merchant ship. His father was 2 sallor and his mother
was from India. William married twice. He and his first wife had two
daughters, Ethel and Bdith. He re-married after his first wife died
and had two more children, Fredrick and Eva. Fredrick was also a ships
Captain and died when his ship was sunk during World War II.

Edith Annie Brierley was born on September 11,1883 in South
Shields, England. She and her husband Albert Edward ¥allace had a
daughter, Bessie, who died when she was about 3 years pld. Albert
Wallace was killed 1in action during VWorld VWar I. Albert's brother was
married to Jeany Hill, whose younger brother Jim bacame Edith's second
husband on May 22, 1920,

Hill - Little

Jobhn James H111 was born on November 20, 1893 ip Ireland. His _
Parents were John William Hill, an Englishman, and Maria {pronounced
Mariah) Jame Little who I believe was from Ireland. Their first child,
Jenny, was born in the U.S. while Maria was visiting. _

.Jim Hill spent time in Ireland with his grandparents and in England
when .he was growing up. He fought Iin France in. World Var I. After the
war he met and married Jenny’'s widowed sister in law, Edith. They
immigrated to the U.S. with their daughter, Marie, They had 2 more

 ﬂdaughters Jenny <(Aunt Jenny) and Lydia CAunt Libby), Jim worked as a
- -'m3ll worker {inp England, as a farmer, and again as a mill worker in the
B UsS. He also raised dogs and horses,
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a 1.

In this Article it is my purpose to review some of the history of Mount Hops
Church and Aston Township, as recorded from various writers and to add to this
some information garmersd from my own regearch,

~ daving lived in the shadow of Mount Hope Church for over seventy-eight.years ’

PRV,

grandparents nvad in t.ho house now occupled by Morrill Fisher and ramily,

doting back to pro-Revohztionary t.imes R amd whose ancestors, while thay did not

suttle 4n Astem, settlod on the edge of Aston, - an Ivy ‘Hlls Road,dating 'back

1o almost William Pernts time,-(thera was one owner bét;veen Penn and th. Halls,

w‘:o settled there about 1685),- and baving access to thres of the best Histories
of Delaware Ceunty and the Dutton Mmily Book, (the Dutton's being among the
early eettlers of this immediate vicinity), I thought I might be abls to tell

you some of the things I can remember, soms of the things my Mother and Grand=-
mother told me, and soﬁe of the things I have read, |

Chester Creek is the dividing line betwsen Aston and Middletown, The first
name given to Chester Creck was "Mocopamﬁ}'. This wag the name given by the
Indians, - Next it was called "Upland Kil1", Creeks were called "Kills* in the
early days; < after that « "Upland Creek”, and afterward =~ "Chester Creak",
Some of the early settlers® land bordered on Chester Creek, |

Oue of the earliest setilers being a William Woodmnsey, who took up eme
iurdred acres, and his land bordered on Chester Creek at Bridgemater and
sxtexded rom Upland %o what is now known as Dutton M1l Road, Woolmnsey
buught this land from William Penn before coming te this cmtry. He came on
ths ship "Kent" in 1677,

An Edward Carter aattlod in chichsster in 3,682 but removed to'a tract’ ot

land in Asten and prsviau. to 1686 was appoiutod Constable , -
Previous to 1687, what. ;ls now mllad *Aatm' ws called 'Nerthky‘, and in -
that year, it was ca.rteg who had it ehnnged t.o Auton, for’ he ‘came froa Aston”
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in the Parish of Baapton, Oxfordshire, England, At that time this Was an
English possession under the relgn of King Charles, the Second,

A Joseph Richards,(although he never 1lived in the township),had 300 aores sur-
veyed to him in the southern paxt of the township which included the sits of
Village Green, == (AM's Ristory, Page 290),

In 1681, Thonﬁs Rowland bought from William Penn 1,000 acres, This traet of land
bordered on Chester Creek from a short distance sbove Knowltom up toward Rockdale
&2 reached aeross the township,

Aoove the Thomas Rewland tract, a John Neal in 1682 had surveyed to him 250 acres,
whlich inecluded the present site of Rockdale, following the West Branch ef Chester
Creck, along the latter to Llewall;n, (now Aston Mills), making Thomas Rowland |
and John Neal owners of all the land bordering on the creek from below ount
Alverno to Asten M1ls,

The following year, 1682, Thomas Rowland, who bought the 1,000 acrss from Perm,
had a surveyor by the name of Charles Ashcom, lay out 500 acres of his 1,000
&cres, which he sold to John Dutten, This property takes in e the Convent,
Mount Hope Church and the surrounding area, across the township as far as Peter!s
Mll, This John Dutton, his wifs, Mary, = Thomes Rowland and Edward Carter and
William Penn, came over on the ship "elcome",

There were one hundred on board, but on the iroyage an epidemic of Smallpox broke
out and th:[rty of them died and were buried at sea, The voyags tock fifty-eight
daye, | ,

The date of John Dutton's death is unicnown, but in 1694,Jehn Neal mayried the
wicor, I have always been proud to omn the Dutton deed to this 500 acres of land,
bui the old English seript is extremely hard to read, but with some help fyrom
others, we have it pretty well deciphered,

History tells us the original house built by the Duttons was butlt of logs in the
mecdom near thre greek, bvy in times of high water, the water came in ihe houss
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. 3.
and he was forced to build another house on higher grourd over a small rivulet,

Oae of the houses bullt by the Dutton's is the largs atons houss on the hill
that can be seen after passing the Swimming Pool, This s not the origiml
house, It 1a now owned by the Sisters of Steint Francis., Ancther houss built
9y the Dutten's 1s the one directly acrose from the 214 American Legion, This
w as bullt in 1749 by Richard Dutton, a Grandson of the original settler, A
evone in the west gable end bears the initials R, D, & M, Doy 1749,

4% the times of the early settlers thsrs were no Churches, pecple being too busy
imllding homes for shelter, The first House of Worship, of which I have record,
wd bullt by the Soeiety of riends, or Quakers, The Quakers did not oall their
Souses of 'ﬂorshij: "Churches", but were always spoken of as "Meeting Houses”,
They never said: "We went to Church®, It was always apoken. of as "going to
Meeting® ,

Among the very early omes wae the ome built at Chishsster, This one was built of

loge in 1688 and was destroyed by fire December 4y 1768, In 1769 it was replaced
oy the stene building that is still standing, This 1s a very historie build:lng
ad the inside doors have bullst holes in them made by the British soldiers,
After the bettls of Brandywine, which occurred September 11, 1777, some of the
Wﬁ American soldiers were brought here from Chadde! Ford, Some =f ‘he
British soldiers, who ware encamped at Mount Hope and Village Green, weui to get
these wounded sbldiers as priscners or possibly to dispose of t.hap. Fortimately,
the neighbors heard of this and had them removed before the arrival of the Srite
ish soldlers, Whether from pure devilment or because they had been outemrted,
they shot holes through the doors, The ones who died sre buried under a nowd

‘of earth where the bodlies of some Indians are buried, This is in the sdjoining

cemetery, Here lie the bodies of the early settlors from thet ayrea, All of
“te grave stones are small, the Quakers never belleved in show and

~ overything had te be very plain, just marked by the nemss snd date

7{ birth and death, Some are marked with plain field stones without
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iny inscription, In passing through, you r.l._ll see some of the gwaves are net
1aid at the same angles as others and you may wonder at this) - the belief
being among some that the bodies should 1ie east and wast facing tho rising mm,
In front of the building is & stone pedestal with steps at ene end, and you
may wonder whet it wes used for. Many of the women rode to Meeting on horse-
hack and they used it so they could easily mount their ho_rsu. W Grandmother
told me she used to ride to Meeting on horse-back from Hall's Corner, (Now #s-
her'!s Corner) to Chichester Meeting, She and her husband, Samuel R, Hall, (my
Crandfather) are buried in the adjolning cemstery, A visit to this placs is
worthwhile,

Returning te Aston, we will travel up the reed frem Mareuns Hock to Village
Green, This road was laid out as a bighway by the Grand Jury en the first week
cf October 1688, On the sane day, the road from Village Green to Edgsmont was
121d out by the Grand Jury, -« (Ashmead?s History).

Faving no churohes,. the religlous services were held at private hones and the
first Ministers were knom as "Circult Riders® s ¢ach one had geversl stora, and
often long distances apart, They traveled mostly on horse«baek as they rods
through ferests and forded streams, A1l dencminations hed their Cireuit Riders,
The Circuit Rider who visited the Mount Hops Methodist ares was e Francls Asbuw,
and mde reference on different eccssions to stopping at Asrom Mattson's, He
lived in & house in Aston, which at one time was occupled by James Scheivert
and family, Mattsen was a paper mmfacturer and had a mill st West Branch,
which he built between 1790 and 1795, and was operated by o water wheel, This
nill wAs mashed amy by a frashet Aaguet 5, 1843, but at that time i3 was ommad
by John P, Crozer,

For anyons who wishes to see where Mowmt Heps actually startsd, - go past the
Convent and take the first roed to the left, After going along that road fér &
short distance, instead ef taking the road to the right, keep streight aheed,
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“nd the first house on the right was Aaron Mattson's home. Mttsen was & devar
Christian and was interested in building a Church in this area, and it was
through his generosity that he and his wife, Mary, gave the ground which
Mount Hope Church stands, and in the year 1807 the Church was built apd a
small cemetery adjoining, |

Their bodies lie between the old and the new Churches and are marked by the
original tombetones, .The late Nelson D, Clayton was a descendant of Aaron
iettson, and his widow, (now deceased), 'irs, Harriet Clayton, wrote a very
interesting article on many of the highlights of Mount Hope, Sha wrote that
they were compiled from family diardes, Church records end the Pernsylvania
Archives, |

One of her fondest hopes was realized when, after recent building programs
were completed, that in an opsn space between the buildings, wmolested, i"e-
mained the tombstones of Aaron Mattsom, His wife, Mary, and daughter,lsabells,
Over the jears the membership increased, and in 1838, an additiom of twenty
feet was added to the rear,

I can well remember wiat the old Church was like inside. There were benches
on both sildes, then an alsle on either side and long benches in the middle
with a division in the center, On both sldes about half way along were large
pot-bellied coal burning stoves which seemed to heat very mfwtablv; In the
front was the pulpilt which was elevated about three feet above the mein floor
and had steps on both sides,

In the right corner were benches and that is where the small children bnd a
class, This was called the "Infant Class", and I can well remember being in
that class, = our teacher being ‘iss Ida West, a daughter of James TWest, who
wae the Tirst full-time Sexton at Mount Hope, He and his family were tha firs*
ocoupants of the house where Joseph Shisler now lives, This house was built in
1884, on ground containing cne acre, purchased from Issbells Mitteon, daughter
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D of Aaron Mattson, in 185, at the price of §100,00, Prior to that time, one of
the men who lived in this community, « George MeCracken, by name, - dug the
greves and ected as Caretaker,
In May 1847, Reverend John Mille, who was the Minister in charge, died and was
buried in a graveyard at Corner Kotch, (now Chelsea), This cemttery was in the
rear of the littls Church., This is now used as a dwalling
In the year of 1860, a division took place on the question of building a new
Shurch at Village Green, or repairing the o0ld cne, A minority withdrew and
tiilt & Church at Village Green, and later was used as & Grange Hall; and (at
the pragent wetding is used as an Apartment Building, located two buildings
above the home of Mrs, Ethel 0, Weir, on the north side of Penmell Road),
Tals didn't prove to be successful end was sold to the Crozer®s of Upland,
Tne Crozerts were Baptists and started a Baptist Church, The firet Winister

who was stationed there that I can remember was Reversrd Miller Jones, a mn
beloved by everyone, He and his femiJ; lived in the parsomage which is the
home of James Hodgers, ecross the road from the old Village Green School,

In 1868, Mount Hope cemeﬁe'ry was enlarged by the purghnse of ons aere of ground
from Samuel R, Hall, {my Grandrather), for $300,00, This was in the rear of the
Church, Astmesd's History tells of buying six acres of ground in 1838, Thia
was incorrect, for until 1868, thay ovmed only thres acres, at which time they
purchased four acres and thirty-three perches from the bairs of Samuel R, Hall,
iy Mother being one of the heirs, |

On this ground, the Parsonage was bullt in 1877, by lewis D, Woed, a first
Cousin of my Mother, Before the Parsonage was built, Weunt Hope had a Farsorage
&t Marcus Hook, This was sold and the Wirister lived in the frame house scrose
from what is now the Munieipsl Bullding, The barm in which the Minister kept,
his horse and wagen wae built the same year as the Parsonage, by Joshu Habbar~
cott, an Unele of the late Issac Habbersett, - for $325,00, I do not know
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7.

5 - whether this included the mteriel or just for his ssrvices.
In 1882, & parcel of lamd was purchased from Jom !;. Rhodes, containing twenty«
8ix squars perches and twelve one~Mundredths, At the same time, Mount Hope
sold tc Rhodes a parcel of ground centaining about the same amownt of grovmnd,
this being done to etreighten a line betwsen the two properties,
in 1898, a contract was awarded to George Sheaff, who lived at Fifth apd Mad-
ison Streets, Chester, for the building of a new Chureh, - his bid being
$6,679,00, Wiile the new Ghuroh was being built, Services were held in s large
tent on what is now the parking lot, A platform for the organ and the Minister
was built and benches and chairs from the old Church were used for seats,
i‘he new Church was not completed bafore cold weather, but the Sundsy School
room was nearly finished and Services were held there, In April 1899, the
Chureh was dedicated,

Intil 1920, Mount Hope Cemetery contaimed less than eight agres, In that year
ny father went to ses Mr, Forstburg, who omned all of the land froam the
entrence at Joseph Shisler?s house, almost to the Red Hill Road, extending back

™

to the Convent Road, then alomg the Convent Road, from the Convent to Asher!s
Corner, and from Fisher's Corner to the Paraonage, My father amsked him if he
would sell some ground to the Trustees, as the ground they owned was being scld
and they wuld gsoon need more, Mr: Forstburg told hiu be would smee that they
would get it ar he always liked Wount Hope and wanted it to be Mg last res’ing
place, Mr, Fforstburg, his wife, and daughter lis in the beautiful sarcoptsgvs
which bears the mame of "Forstburg®, st the turn of the drive, == This grownd
wass purchased in 1920 and contined about six and ome~quarter acres, From the
same property, the Sisters of Saint rancls bought twenty acres and Mr, apd
Mra, Robert Ormsby purchased two acres, on which they buflt & house, This houme
was desiroyed by fire and in the year 1940, irs, Mattie Qpmsby, widew of Roter’
Ormgby, sold the two acres to the Trusiges, This left over acres of
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B tls ordginal tract, and in 1941, a cousin of mine by the name of Lawrence
Talley, who condusts quite a large real estate business in Wimington, eame to
sea me and told me that ground had bqen listed with him for sale and wented to
know if I knejv of anyens who might be interested, I told him I thought I aic
and for him to go see Isaac Habbersett, President of the Board of Trustees,and
tell him I said to buy it while they had the chance,

M_r. Habbersett called a sp_ecial meetlng of the Trustees and thay purehased the
ground containing approximately eight and one-half (8}) acres, mkhig Meunt
Hope Cemetery containing aporo:dmtely.twenty-faur (24) acres, --

L S . - . . "
" R NTIN - -
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CHRONOLOGY
OF
REAL ESTATE
ACQUIRED GRANTOR COST  ACRES
6/3=—=1807 AARON MAMTSON .50¢ -
SPFECIE 1
1807 CHURCH BUILT
1838 CHURCH EimmED 20 FT.
2/6 1854 ISABELLE MATTSON 3100.00 1
L/13--1868 SAMUEL R. HALL 300,00 1
) 5/2---1876 HEIRS OF SAMUEL R. HALL 10516625 420625
1877 PARSONAGE BUILT
12/27-1882 JOHN B. RHODES 50,00 1632
The Church sold Rhodes .098 Acres
in exange; to straighten lines,
Bought it back by Deed 1/3 194
1884 SEXTON'S HOUSE BUILT
1899 NEW CHURCH BUILT (2ND.)
_ 4,/ --1920 FORSTBURG 937.35 6.249
4/20--1940 M. M. ORMSEY - 1700,00 2
T1/3-—1911 " HENRY E. LACKEY 2970,14, 8,4861
T 1952 HABBERSETT HALL BUILT
1960 - NEW CHURCH BUILT (3RD.)
PURCHASED 2L,,10455
SOLD TQ RHODES 098
TOTAL HOW OWNED 21, 00655
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Over the years I have bad many disappointments and heartaches and I will not
mention any of them, but I thought it might be well to inject some of the
humorcus incldents instead,

Bafore the days of the automobile; most countyry young men had their horee and
buggy, or runabout, which they used to go see their lady friends,

Mount Hope had sheds in which the pecple who drove to Church puf. thelr horses
and wagon.

A certain young man, who lived in Boothwyn, eame to sse a girl in this ares,
and they would come to Church in the evenings, While they were in Church, two
young fellows tock the hind wheels off and put them in front, and the front
wheels in the rear, The hind wheels were higher than the fremt wheels,

They came out of Church and rode arcund the country and the owner never
noticed it until the following day. ==

As the Darkey used to say == "Ain't love grand?®

Incident No, 2
The second incldent is one ai:o\rt my Brother-in-law, Rowland Stanert, whon a
great many of you know, He ueed to have a horse and buggy and used it while
he was courting my sister, Alice,
My sister played the organ and Rowland would drive up and putb his tean in the
sheda, attend the Service, and afterwards the two spent their evenings bogethei'.
One summer evening, Rowland hitched his horse to the rumabout and tied his
horse whils he got ready to come to c_hubch. The horse got loose and estarted
up the read in a very lelsurely way, crossed the ﬁaltimre and Ohio Railroed
tracks, 1t being before the overpass was butlt, = up to Village Green, mde
the left hand turn and was 2s far as the Sexton's houss, vhem ‘r, Petiet, who
was Sexton at that time, recogniszing the team,(which he had seen many times
before), == saw the team without a driver, he turned the team around, goi in
and drove down the road hunting Rowland, who he fomd coming up the roed, =
‘hunting h:l.ﬁ horeel} - |
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Incident g, 3

;BAny years ago they didn't have concrete vaults like we have today, but ysed
plain wooden burial boxes, very seldom painted or even varnished, The Under~
saker would bring these boxes cut two or three days in advance and put them
ir the sheds to keep them dry. The day of the funeral, they would earry them
~ubt end lower them before the funeral arrived,

*n those days there were tramps who used to go from house to house asking for
food and would sleep In peoplets barns, Often times they would sleep in Mount

BOORUM & PEASE “NGIEAR” @

Hope sheds, .
One night it got quite cool BeRertghp and Nr. West, who was Sexton at that
time, told me when he came ocut in the morning to go to work, just as he ms

passing one of thess boxes, the 11d reised wp and a fellow stuck his head out,
having elept in the box to keep wara}} '

up, West told me he surely was mﬁriaed when that happened,

gy e O

300RUM & PEASE “NSTEAR” ®
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AUGUST G, TRYENS

® 1857 -~ 1993

A% this time I thought i% wes only proper to tell you something about my
Tather, = August G. Tryens, He was born Decenber 20, 1857, in Denmark, and at
:n early age, the femily moved to Antwerp, Belgium, At the age of twelve, he
1nft home on & Garmen sailing ship, This was during the French and Prussian
War, and to keep from being captured by the Rrench Navy, they went up in the
Horsh Sea to @ place called Fromso, Norwey, This was the most northern tom
ci33pt ome, e Hammerfest, = being farther north.

2{tor Winter set in, their ship was frozen in the fce yntil the follewing Spring.
Thie waé during the time of darkness for wany days, and be used to tell how tho
Captain awoke everyone to see the Mldnight Sum,

In the Spring, after the ice melted and the war was over, they seiled for
America, On the way aeross they encountersd calm weather and were forcoed to

wait for the wind to blew enough to fill the sails, They also encountered head
inds and were foresd to taskj = this, of course, meant much mere mileage and
they finally srrived in Americe after being out of sight of land for seveniy=
two days, e with no possessions except & trunk with his elothing and a gola
‘acin which his Mother had sewed in his clothes,

la came to Aston and worked for some of the farmers in this area, and firally
went with a Gecrge MeCracken, & butcher, and learnsd to be & meat cutter,

Tn 1878, he started in business for himself, which he conductsd successfully
for many yeers. Through thrift end hard work he built & house now stending

on Tryens Road (whers Mrs, Mary Harringtoo lives}, raised four children, bought
a ferm containing eixty {60) acres and saved encughrto be comfortably fixed,

He wae a member of Nount Hops Church and served as President of the Beard of
Trustees. He gave mnstinkingly of his time and talents, especially when the
Church was baing hudlt, |
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Auguzt. G Ixyens (eontinued)

He also eervad on the first Board of Commissioners of Aston Toenship, when
Aston wae chanped from a Second Class Township to a First Class Township, -
this being done when the population reached two thousand (2,000), |
About 1924, he had = stroke, from which he never fully recoversd, and I took
over the business and conducted it until December 1952, when the business was
discontinued, being just five months short of seventy-five (75) years serving

the people of this vicinity wlth meat, mmr' of the fanilies which we served
for three generations.

He disd September §, 1933.

e B W i
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13.

hston Townghip
B ROARS

On &n early map on w_hich the names of them first settlers appear only three
Roade are shown, -- 014 King's Road ran parallsl to the Delawarse River, ==
{\shmead's History - Page 435}
i 1686
In 1686, a road was cpened from concord Township, starting at the Smith Bridge
Road, about one-malf way between Concord Roed and Elam, Its direction was
through Booth‘s Corner down to what is now known as Bootlmyn, thence South
through what is now known as Linwood, down to what is now the main street in
Mercus Hook to the Delaware Rivaf-
1687
In 1687, another road was 1244 out from Birminghem through Concord to Corner
Ketch, From Corner Ketch, it passed through Twin Oaks and Feltonville ,erosai_ng
e whet 1s now Ninth Street in Chester, down to what is now Kerlin Street to the
river, The name of Corner Ketch was changed to Chelsea in 1856,
1205
The road best known to Aston residents 1s the Concord Road and was extended
from Chelsea to Chester in 1705. It began at Chelses, down through what is now
xnown as Tryen's Road, through Village Green to Cartertom, (now Feltonvills),
where it joined the road built the year before, into Chester,
112§
We do not now when the road imown as Red Hi1l Road was opened, but it is showr
in a survey of lands of Joln Dutton in 1736,
3112
The roed from Log Town (Cheeter Heighte) to Hall and Sharpless Mill, (lccsted
at Liewellyn, now known as Aston Mills), was opened in 1772, == (Ashmead's
History - Page 294)¢ This ia now callsd the Birney Highwy.
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Contimed

1805 |
The road from Mount Hope Church to Aston Mills, mown as the Mill Road, was
opened in 1805, This information is in an entry in the Road Doeket at Media,
filed in the Court House,

1818
We have been umable to pin=point the exact date when what is known as the
Convent Road, leaving the Concerd Road, (near where the Chester Munieipal
Avthority water tanks now stand)- down through dAsherls Corner, past ths
Convent to the Red Hill Road, was opened, In a deed of 1838, the road wee not
menticned, yet the deed of the same property, when sold in 182, read as
follows:= "Across the road lead;j.ng from Corher Keteh to the road lsading
from Village Greem to Rockdale", -« the road is mentioned,
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EARLY SCHOOIS OF AP

In the sarly days the schools were pri.vaie, and unless parents eould affard ir
pay to send their children to one of these, it is doubtful if they melved
any education, ‘

Among the early rrivate schools in Aston was what was nown as the "Octagon
School®, = this being & two story school apd was built on a plet of ground con-
taining one sere at Village Green and was used as a private school}; & Janmes

ﬁ Mc‘dullen was the Schoolmster,

In 1836, after ths Public School law mnt into effect, and & Boe.rd of Directors
was organized, the old gchool passed into the possession of the tomship and on
ceptember 30, 1836, a school was opened thare, Nicholas 7, Walter was employed
as & toached in the lower room, and Wrs, Moors wes appointed tsacher in the
upper room, - their salary being $25,00 & month, —(Ashmeadts History Pags 298),
This school stood about thirty or forly feet back of the school which now
stands, the foundation wells were plainly visible when I went to school, The
school thet now stands wes built in  / §573.

on the Dutten tract, where the Convert now stands, = sbout 1845, Reverend
Benjanin S, Hethrington, ~ an Eplscopal Clergymen, established & Semipary for

'young men and ladies which soom gained popularity. The Principsl was con-
gtantly enlarging until he finally becams bankrupt, In removing an old homse
adjoining the Seminary buildings, e beam was found distinetly marked Rbruarv
26, 1704, Tids house wes built of hewed logs of yellow poplar and wae bullt vy
Thoms Dutton and was part of the origiml tract of 506 acres,

On Jwne 14, 1859, Benjanin S, Hethrington scld the estxte to ¥illiam Maroney
-nd he convayed it to the Philadelphia Theological Seminary of Seint Charlec
Borromss, whils the new Seminary was being built at Oteebrook, the educational
work of this institution of learning was conducted, When the new building wao
completod in thc sunmer of 1871, the estate mear Village Green, eou;t:laing
twenty=oight and one-half acres was offered for eale,
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On September 7¢h. of that year the property was sold to the Sisters of Selnt
B' Francis of Philadelphia, for 2 time the old Seminary bullding was used, but
{4 soon became too small and a new Convent was erscted, the cormsr stons being
1aid May 29, 1873, ==(Ashmeed's History, Page 300).
About 1857, J. Barvey Barton established a Seminary at Village Oreen, on ths
Rockdals Road near the Baptist Church, It was an Institute in which both
sexes wers recelved and educated, and ranked high, ~ many of its pupils having
risen to prominent positions, among them belng John Drew, oms of the greatest
actors of all time, he being an uncls of John, Ethel and Lionel Barrymore,
My Mother, Sareh H, Hell, and my Uncls, Samuel H, Hall, attended this schoel,
In 1866 it was discontinued as a school and is now m apartment,
Another early school in Aston was known es Martin'ts School, afterward known as
Logtown School, and 4n 1880 the name was changed to Chester Heights,--(Asimead
History, Page 299). |
Aston Mills School was bullt in 1670, My Mother taught at both schools, pre-
sumably from 1876 to 1881, and she told me she walked back and forth from

o
el

&‘ .
Bt

F
L

Ball's Cormer to Chester Heights night and morning, She nesver told me what
salary she received, but I don't think it was very much, |
Dorothy: St.aneri, my neice, has the paper for Motherts appointment, signed by
G, G. V. Crawford, one of the Dirsctors at that time, He was a physician anl
in after years escorted her four children into the world --(Samuel H, Tryens ),
A school being required at Rockdale, the Board directed a suitabls building
should be obtained for that purpose, and Richard &, Smith, e Director, offer.?
the rent of & houss free, provided it was left in as good & condition as th>
Board found it. The offer was accepted and the dwelling stending baek of Wie
ueed to bs the Mountain House wmas the first Public Schoel at that point, --
Ashmead's History, Page 229), The houss of Harry Tillman stands where this

schocl stood, In 1853 the school at Rockdals was built, Ths building now
standing is not the original school, The building now standing wes sold to

to tiaint Francis de Sales Church, In 1879 a brick acheocl was built at Bridge~
water,
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ENOWLTON
{ have been asked how Knowlton got its name, The site of Knowltom up to the
year 1800 was a perfect wiljsrness, After crossing the creek, there was a
mil] reace which -:rbsrsad the roal and near the headgetes, which would be cn he
left side of the road thore was the mark of a grave, the occupant of which.
+radition named "Mogcey", and from thet clrcumstance, the crozsing of the creal
ms napsd "oggey'ls Ford' -- (Smithts History, Page 399).
'te worc. "Ford" was used at phces along creeks where the strseams had te be
forded before bridges weTe bullt; -~ names like "Cheddst! Ford™, - “"Presbyteiisa
%rd" (now 'fount Alverno;.
¥y Mother told me she could remember dfiving through the creek before the
bridge was built, On the lsft side after mking the turn to the right wer.
shree stons houses and above them on the hill were more stone houses, Near the
road you cen #ee whers ths old well with a hand pump was located, -~= the prople
in the houses all using the same well, On the other side of the road near the
croek, close to where the nice homs of Mr, frenk B, Cross now stands, wac a
Cotton M.11, and I can well remember the old three story stons building, and
have climbed the stairway the employees used,
The machinery was driven by mater power but not by water wheel, but a Lurdins

~ wes used, The machinery had been removed leng before my time, but the cld gerrs
from the turbine ware left bshind and I can remember seeing them, »JMQA/‘I»D—UW

o —
This mill was operated by the Crozer’s of Upland, &bd one of the Crozecis

married an English woman by the name of Knewles, Mrs, Crozer always acdmired
that part of the country and agked if they wuld name the place "Xnowlac",

They did not think Knowles would be an appropriate nams, so they took the first
five letters of her nams and added "ton", = Henoé the mame, (This informeticm
was given to me by the late William E, Criffith, Editer of the Rockdale Hera'd),
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(Reprint from the Rockdale Herald of July 30, 1943) 19.
FLOOD_OF 1843

One hundred years ago on August 5, 183, oceurred tha greatast freshet in all
history around this section, The big flood caused thousands of dollars damage,
swept away factorles, houses and other bui ldings, caused thes death of sevaral
persons, and complstaly changed the geograpw of the cmmtryuids.

On that summer day in 1843 the atmosphere wes thick, éu].t.ry and hot, Had been
for several days, and at about four o'elock in the afternoon heavy clouds wers
seen to géther. They got lower and heavier and then, 21l at once, there was a
torrential cloudburet, and before the swollen waters receded, the ereck had
risen to 24 feet above its normal lsvel,

Within an hour aft.er the storm broke, buildings, animls and all kinds of
dri_ftweod and objects were seen flasting madly down stream, pig’pens with pigs
in them were seen by some,

John P, Crozer was operating the Weat Branch M1l at that time, also the York-

‘shire Mi1l, Workmen got busy moving yarn and cloth from the lower floors to
the upper ocnes, but it availed nothing, The ranging torrsnt tore the mill
building loose, and so strong was the curre:_xt that even machinery was carried
down stream.

At Parkmmmt, the east and the west branches of Chester Creek mita, and the
current then became much stronger, ‘John Garsed wes running a machine shop
along the cresk back of whers the Nethodist Church stands in Rockdale, and the
shop and 1ts tools soon succumbed to the flood, Garsed fleeing just in time to
.e'scapa'. drowning, |

Rirther down the stream, just a little north of where the rallroad now is, Jom
Rhodes, sn Englishmen, hed a smll farm, located right at the Glen Riddle

bridge, W hen the storm came up, Mr. Rhodes was alarmed for fear that his cows
night get caught in the high, swift current., Proceeding to the barn to look
after them, the flood caught him, and he was carried down streem, and drowneds

The Rhodes® house became a victim soon after, and #r, Rhodes! two daughters,




0371872009 15:49 FAX WEICHERT REALTORS

go28§
AV

J.OCﬂ Qf &2 (gmt;gug) (2)

Hannah and Jane, and a grand-daughter,lary Amn Culnnmrth, wers swept sway
with the houss and drmmed.

On the Rhodes' premises wers also four temant housqs, and these waye also des
stroyed, apd in one of thess houses at the tine was Mrs. Nary Jane MeGulgn,
wife ofﬂ'rhoma MeGuigan, Mr, MoGulgan was away from home at the time, but Mra.
MoCuigan was in the house witk & young baby, and both perished in the raging
waters, A little girl ‘rc;m Wamayunk, visiting the McGuigan's, met the same
fate., The body of John Rhodes was found next morning aleng the creek at Mi.
Alvarno, and the other bodies were found near Baldwin's Run,

Across Pennell Road "rom the Rhodes? property, near the adge of the creek, wes
a three-si-'.ory stona houss, which is still standing, A number of refugees, flaa-
ing for their lives when the water came up, toock refuge in this old house,flrsi
assenmbling on the first floor, and finally go:lgg to the top floor when the
water came in, There were ten peopls hmddled in this house, and it locked as
1f the building would bave to give away to the terrifis torrent,

Their predioament could be plainly seen from atop the Yellow Row Hill, neer
Calvary Church, a high promontory which accorded a clear view of the dissstar,
A crowd of citizens assembled on this high hill to view the flood, and heé see:
the folks enter the stons houss, Richard 5, cmith, 8 leader among memn,
inmediately organized a prayer meeting on the hill, and prayed earnestly iar
the safety of the inmates of the tiweatensd house,

A very short time thersafter, when it locked as if the bouse could not encure
the strong ourrent, & large sycamore tree was uprooted by the terrent, which
turned the current awy from the bullding, and the building and those within i%
nﬁ saved by this appsrent mirecls,

The mext morning, after the waters bad receded, Rockdale was indeed nothing but
a vast bed of dry rocks, particularly along the shores of the creeck, It wms
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difficult to locate the roads, and nobody seemed to knew where the reads had
beﬁn. All of the szidgas had been swept away, so the town bad to be laid out
anew, |

New roa.ds. were laid out, in different locations, the wrecked factaries and
houses were replaced, and those who lived around here at that time had to
begin iife all over again, “ |

In Pemnsgrove, now Glen Riddle, four stons houses near the edge of the eresk
ware swej:t away, but the occupants all fled to safety and escaped & watery
grave,

Mary Jackson, & 25 year old colored wmn., was gathoring driftwood in the
meadow at Dutton's Mill when the torrent csught her, and she was immediately
drowned, _ |
Jon Rbodes, the flood victim, was the grandfather of John B. Rhodes, well
knmown manufacturer and founder of Aston Mills, The bodies of the Rhodes
flood vietins were buried in Calvary cemstery, in Rockdale, whore a grave

stone in the center of the cemetery lists their names and tells what mmm
to them, |

The land on which now stands the Beaumont gasoline service station is a part of
the Rhodes farm,

A e Y W
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On the Sixteenth of January, 1789, Nicholas Fairlamb, (who at that
time owned the Cobourn, or Dutton Hills), eonveyed to John Sharp-
less, the tract of land on which the Knowlton Millis are situated,
No mention is made in this deed of a mill or mill seat. In 1800
"the site of Knowlton was a perfect wilderness".

On September 30, 1802, John Sharpless conveyed the same tract to
Jonathan Tyson, with the right of a certain dam thereon. On
November 15th., of the same year, Tyson purchased of Elizabeth
Grissell (Griswold), fourteen acres in Aston Township, located

on Chester Creek, opposite to the tract he had bought of Sharpless;
the deed specifically mentions the dam rights, etc.

On May 25, 1807, Elijah Tyson, a son of Jonathan, bought of his

father, two hundred and fifty acres of land in Middletown, embrac-
ing the mill site, dams, and water righté, and July 25th of the
same year, the fourteen acres in Aston, with right to abdt a dam
against the shore of the creek. In this year 1807, for_the first
time, the name of Tyson appeared on the assessment-roll in connec-
tion with the mills, and at that time, Elijah Tyson was assessed
on a savw mill. He continued to control the business until July
27, 1813, when he sold elght acres in Middletown, including the
mill, mill~dam rights, etc., and fourteen and one-half acres in-
Aston Township, opposite, with water rights, to Judah Dobson, of
'Philadelphia, who changed the saw mill to a rolling mill., Little
information has been gained concerning this mill, but tradition
asserts it was a coppef mill, and the road leading from the piace

to Village Green was known as Copper Mill Road.
The veperabde Hon, Edward Darlington, of Media, now in his eighty-
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l' ninth year, states the mill was known as Dobson's Copper Mill, and
~was used for rolling copper into sheets. The mill does not appear
on the assessment rolls for 181?,'1819, 1819, 1820, nor in that of
1821, On November 6, 1822, John Vaughan and John Hart, Assignees
of Thomas and Judah Dobson, conveyed to Samuel Love, "all that
rolling-mill and four tracts of land",one of which is deseribed
- &as in Middletown, on Chester Creek, containing eight acres, adjoin-
ing lands of Elijah Tyson, Abram Trimble, and others. Another tract
was in Aston, and was partly covered by the mill pond, and was
adjoining and below the land of Jesse Grissell (Griswold).
Samuel Love retained title to the estate until February 9, 1825,
when he conveyed it to John D. Carter, who had been operating the
Trimble Cotton Mill in Concord since 1813. In the deed to Carter,
BN it is stated that the rolling mill had been changed into a cotton
factory, and that the "cotton factory, mill, dams, ponds, races,
etc., and four pieces of land" were the properties embraced in
the conveyance., In the "Report of the Manufactories of Delaware
County", made in 1826, the place is described as being above Dutton
Mill, on Chester Creek, in Middletown Township, a cotton factory,
forty by ninety, head and fall thirteen feet, owned and occupied
by John D. Carter, has seven carding engines of twenty-eight and
two of'thirty-one engines, workers and strippers, two drawing frames
of four double héads each, two double speeders of ten bobbins each,
one stretcher of forty-two spindles, eight hundred and eight |
throatle spindles, six hundred and sixteen mule spindles; spins
—-twelva hupdred and seventy-eight pounds of cotton yam . per wedk,
No. 20, with power to drive four thousand spindles, with all the

necessary preparations Employees about forty-six hands; tenements
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ii for thirteen families". This propertly was owned by Carter until

April, 1829; vhen it was sold to Fdward Darlington and Thomas
Clyde, and Carter removed to the South. The mills were rented by
Darlington and Clyde to Kershaw, Dean and Hill, vwho operated them
until they were sold, March 4, 1832, to Robert Beatty. and John
O'Neill. At the time of the purchase, ﬁhere was a cotton factory
and tilt* ®ild on the estate; Beagby and 0'Neill began at this
place the manufacture of edge tools, but O'Neill soon withdrew from
the firm and rented from Beatty, who had bought the cotton mrill at
Knowlton. On January 7, 1834, the factory was, with contents,
entirely consumed by fire.
On October 26, 1835, John P.ICrozer bought the property, containing
the four tracts of land conveyed in 1822 to Samuel Love, a tilt

et mill, saw mill, new building for factory, twenty-five by thirty-

| five feet, one brick and seven stone houses. After the sale, Mr.

Beatty continued\the pvusiness at the place for a year or two when
Mr. Crozer erected a stone cotton mill, thirty-two by seventy-six
feet, three stories in height. This mill building was washed away
in 1843, and the next year a stone building thirty—three by eighty-
tive feet, three stories in height was erected.
In 18#6 Phineas Lownes and Abraham Blakely commenced manufacturing
at that place, and continued until 1853, when it was operated by
Mr. Crozer until about 1869. At the latter date the mill was leased
by John B. Rhodes, who now operates it, (Near the head gates of
the mill there was formerly the marks of a grave, the occupﬁnt of

which tradition named "“Moggey", and from that circumstance, the

crossing of the creek was named "Moggey's Ford".
*--(Cloth govering for a wagon, OT cart, or boat).
. , 3-






